
SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA  

Wednesday, October 2, 2019 – 2:00pm 
Monterey One Water Board Room, 5 Harris Court, Building “D” 

Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 

Watermaster Board 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno, Chair 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ian Oglesby 
California American Water – Director Christopher Cook 
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone, Vice Chair 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director George Riley 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Troy Thompson 
City of Monterey – Councilmember Dan Albert  
City of Del Rey Oaks – Councilmember John Gaglioti 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Mary Adams, District 5 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
Oral communication is on each meeting agenda in order to provide members of the public an
opportunity to address the Watermaster on matters within its jurisdiction.  Matters not appearing on
the agenda will not receive action at this meeting but may be referred to the Watermaster
Administrator or may be set for a future meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes or as
otherwise established by the Watermaster.  In order that the speaker may be identified in the minutes
of the meeting, it is helpful if speakers would use the microphone and state their names.  Oral
communications are now open.

IV. REVIEW OF AGENDA
If there are any items that arose after the 72-hour posting deadline, a vote may be taken to add the item
to the agenda pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 54954.2(b).  (A 2/3-majority
vote is required).

V. MINUTES - Approve Minutes of Regular Board meeting held August 7, 2019 .......................................3 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Consider approving Summary of Payments Made During August and September 2019 totaling

$45,821.36 .............................................................................................................................................7 
B. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Reports through August 31, 2019 ............................9 

VII. ORAL PRESENTATION – None scheduled

VIII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discuss/Consider Recommendation to the Watermaster Board for Proposed Fiscal Year 2020

Annual Budgets:
1. Proposed Fiscal Year 2020 (January – December) Administrative Budget ..................................13 



2. Proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Monitoring and Management Program; and Monitoring and
Management Fund—Operations and Monitoring and Management Fund—Capital Budgets ......15 

3. Proposed 2020 Replenishment Assessment Fund Budget – No Action Required ........................31 
B. Consider Approving the following Professional Service Contracts for Fiscal Year 2020: .................33 

1. Two Contracts with Montgomery & Associates, Inc. — one for $13,000 for providing ongoing
and as-requested general hydrogeologic consulting services during the year and the second for
$24,130 to prepare the Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report (SIAR) for 2020 ..............................35 

2. Two Contracts with MPWMD—one for $54,098 and the second one for $3,915, both
pertaining to monitoring and other work on the Seaside Groundwater Basin Monitoring
and Management Program (M&MP) for 2020 ..............................................................................43 

3. Two Contracts with Martin Feeney—one for $4,000 to provide on-call/as-requested
hydrogeologic consulting services and one for $19,250.56 to perform induction logging
of the Sentinel Wells for 2019 .......................................................................................................56 

4. One Contract with Todd Groundwater—for $4,000 to provide on-call/as-needed
hydrogeologic consulting services.................................................................................................63 

C. Discuss/Consider Recommendation to the Watermaster Board to Approve the Proposed
Replenishment Assessment Unit Costs for Natural Safe Yield and Operating Yield
Overproduction for Water Year October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020 .................................65 

D. Resolution expressing support of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project Desalination
Plant and Related Facilities..................................................................................................................69 

IX. OLD BUSINESS - None

X. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (No Action Required)
A. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) approved minutes from meeting held August 14 and draft

minutes from meeting held September 11, 2019 .................................................................................71 
B. Watermaster report of production of the Seaside Basin October 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019 .................75 
C. Watermaster letter to Court regarding City of Seaside Request for a Watermaster Storage and

Recovery Agreement ...........................................................................................................................77 

XI. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS

XII. STAFF COMMENTS

XIII. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – Wednesday, November 6, 2019 - 2:00 P.M.

XIV. ADJOURNMENT
This agenda was forwarded via e-mail to the City Clerks of Seaside, Monterey, Sand City and Del Rey Oaks; the Clerk of the Monterey Board of Supervisors, the 
Clerk to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; the Clerk at the Monterey County Water Resources Agency, Monterey One Water and the California 
American Water Company for posting on September 23, 2019 per the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54954.2(a).



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER (Watermaster) 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monterey One Water Board Room, 5 Harris Court, Building “D” 
Ryan Ranch, Monterey, California 

August 7, 2019 

I. CALL TO ORDER – The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.

II. ROLL CALL
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno, Chair
City of Del Rey Oaks – Council Member John Gaglioti
City of Sand City – Mayor Mary Ann Carbone
California American Water (CAW) – Director Christopher Cook
City of Monterey – Council Member Dan Albert
City of Seaside – Mayor Ian Oglesby
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) – Director George Riley
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Troy Thompson

Absent:
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Supervisor Mary Adams

Others Present
Robert Jaques – Technical Program Manager, Watermaster
Laura Paxton – Administrative Officer, Watermaster
Lori Girard – Legal Counsel, CAW
Don Freeman – Legal Counsel, City of Seaside
Bob Holden – Monterey One Water (M1W)/Pure Water Monterey (PWM)
Mike McCullough – Government Affairs Administrator, M1W
Jonathan Lear – Senior Hydrogeologist, MPWMD
Patrick Breen – Water Resources Manager, Marina Coast Water District (MCWD)
Sarah Hardgrave – Policy Analyst, District 5 Supervisor May Adams’ Office
Russ McGlothlin, Esquire – City of Seaside Legal Counsel, Law Offices of O’Melveny & Myers
Michael Paxton – Paxton Associates

III. ELECTION OF OFFICER
A majority of board members cast their vote by ballot in favor of Mary Ann Carbone as
Vice Chair of the Watermaster Board. Director Thompson abstained having just taken
his seat on the board.

IV. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: None

V. REVIEW OF AGENDA: There were no requested changes to the agenda.

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
It was moved by Councilmember Albert, seconded by Mayor Oglesby and unanimously carried to
approve the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held June 5, 2019.

3



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster      
Regular Board Meeting 8/7/19   
Page 2 of 3 

 
VII.  CONSENT CALENDAR  

A. Consider approval of Summary for Payments made during June 2019 totaling $19,870.00 
B. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Reports through June 30, 2019 
C. Change in Posting of Data to Watermaster Website 

 
Moved by Mayor Carbone, seconded by Director Riley and unanimously carried to 
approve the consent calendar. 
 

VIII. ORAL PRESENTATION: None 
 

IX.  NEW BUSINESS:  
A. Consider Approving/Give Direction Regarding City of Seaside Application for In-lieu Storage 
   

Russ McGlothlin, counsel for the City of Seaside gave details of the City’s proposed in lieu 
storage program and the associated storage application submitted to the Watermaster for 
approval. The City would purchase water from MCWD to use in lieu of golf course 
irrigation with potable water from the Seaside Groundwater Basin (Basin). The water not 
produced for irrigation would remain in the Basin, “stored” for later extraction and use by 
the City’s municipal system and for sale to projects being developed in the Fort Ord 
communities. Mr. McGlothlin stated that the program would maximize use of recycled 
water for non-potable (golf course irrigation) demand as per Watermaster Decision tenents 
and would leave in the Basin water that requires no treatment as injected replenishment 
water does. The board voiced concerns that since the City of Seaside golf courses are 
declared in the Adjudication Decision as an Alternative Producer, its use of underlying 
groundwater allocation is restricted to the overlying golf courses. The Decision is not clear 
whether a Standard Producer, such as the City of Seaside Municipal System, is allowed 
storage and extraction by in-lieu means using its alternative production rights as the storage 
method without being subject to pumping reductions. 

 
Moved by Council Member Gaglioti, Seconded by Mayor Oglesby and unanimously 
carried, to authorize a letter to the court giving Watermaster board support to the 
technical merits of the in-lieu storage program however seeking clarification whether 
the Decision allows a Standard Production Allocation (SPA) aquifer storage and 
recovery program using Alternative Production Allocation (APA) un-pumped water 
in-lieu of recharge injection and later use beyond the overlying parcel; or whether 
Alternative Production Allocation III.B.3 through subsection d of the Decision would 
require a party to convert its APA to SPA with applied pumping reductions in order 
to be eligible for a storage and recovery program using un-pumped water in lieu of 
recharge injection.  

 
B. Geochemical Modeling of the Pure Water Monterey Advanced Water Treatment Water 

 
Mr. Jaques noted that the storage and recovery agreement for the Pure Water Monterey 
project’s Advanced Water Treatment water (www.seasidebasinwatermaster.org/Other/ 
Storage%20Recover%20Agreement%20-%20Signed.pdf) states in part that prior to injecting 
any advanced treated water into the Basin a geochemical interaction modeling assessment 

4



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster      
Regular Board Meeting 8/7/19   
Page 3 of 3 

 
must be provided as contemplated in the memorandum of agreement between Watermaster, 
MPWMD, CAW and M1W dated February 10, 2018 (www.seasidebasinwatermaster.org/ 
Other/18%200210%20WM_CAW_M1W_MPWMD%20MOU%20Geochem%20Model%20.
pdf). If any mitigation measures are required to prevent material injury to the Basin, these 
measures must be taken before injection occurs. The technical memorandum prepared by 
Pueblo Water Resources, the firm that conducted the geochemical interaction modeling 
assessment concluded that there were no significant changes in water quality and that the 
resultant water quality met all regulatory standards. The technical memorandum includes the 
recommendation that the advanced water treatment plant facility must operate to produce 
water with a pH in the range of 7.5-8.5 and that it must produce water having an alkalinity 
of at least 50mg/L unless reassessment using lower alkalinity water demonstrates that there 
will be no adverse impacts from the lower alkalinity.  

 
Moved by Director Riley, Seconded by Council Member Albert and unanimously carried, 
to 1) Accept the Technical Memorandum prepared by Pueblo Water Resources for the 
MPWMD as satisfactorily fulfilling MPWMD’s obligation to perform geochemical 
modeling of the Pure Water Monterey AWT water, with the caveat that retesting with 40 
mg/L alkalinity water will be done and the results do not indicate any adverse impacts. If 
there are adverse impacts resulting from the lower alkalinity, the AWT plant should be 
required to operate at a minimum alkalinity of 50 mg/L; 2) Defer geochemical modeling 
work on the desalination plant water at this time, and perform that work when/if the 
desalination plant begins construction, and; 3) Issue an amendment to the Pure Water 
Monterey Storage and Recovery Agreement to include the requirement that the AWT 
plant operate to produce water having a pH in the range of 7.5 to 8.5 and a minimum 
alkalinity of 50 mg/L unless reassessment using lower alkalinity water demonstrates that 
there will be no adverse impacts from the lower alkalinity.   

 
X.  OLD BUSINESS: None 

 
XI.  INFORMATIONAL REPORTS:  

A. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) minutes from meetings held June 12 and July 10, 
2019  

B. Watermaster report of production of the Seaside Basin April 1, 2019 – June 30, 2019 
C. Watermaster letter in support of Pure Water Monterey Project dated June 11, 2019 
D. Article on three-dimensional models of subsurface freshwater/saltwater interfaces and 

mapping of coastline 
 

XII.  DIRECTOR’S REPORTS: Director Riley stated he would like to explore further using the Basin 
more as a reservoir, beyond being a production source for parties. He was also seeking to better 
understand the Replenishment Assessment Fund and credits that are applied. 

 
XIII.  STAFF COMMENTS: There were no staff comments.  

 
XIV.  NEXT MEETING DATE: The next meeting of the Watermaster board will be held 

Wednesday, September 4, 2019 at the Monterey One Water board room at 5 Harris Court, 
Building "D" on Ryan Ranch in Monterey at 2:00 p.m.  

 
XV.  There being no further business, Chair Bruno adjourned the meeting at 3:16 p.m.          

5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



ITEM VII.A.

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Laura Dadiw, AO
DATE: October 2, 2019
SUBJECT: Summary of Payments made during the months of August - September 2019

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Sumary of Payments Made August 2019
Paxton Associates (Administrative Officer (AO))
June 26, 2019 through July 25, 2019 37.5 3,750.00$      

27.5 4,125.00        

Montgomery & Associates (Technical Consultant) 
11.0 2,455.36        

Total for August 2019 10,330.36$    

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
July 9, 2019 through July 30, 2019     

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of 
Watermaster issues; TAC agenda packet/meeting prep/attend. Prep/attend SVBGSA TAC 
meetings.Review Todd Groundwater 2008 study of coastal v inland injection of PWM 
water. Begin 2020 RFSs for consultant work & consultant schedule. Review Trussell 
Tech operation optimization plan for PWM project. Prepare Board agenda Transmittals.

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER

Consider approving payment of bills submitted and authorized to be paid August - September 2019

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed regarding 
the Seaside Basin. Draft Agenda; gather docs for 8/7 meeting; speak with Bob Costa. 
Transmittal for Seaside In-lieu project. McGlothlin correspondance. Completion of 6/5 
Board meeting minutes. Follow up re: WM data collection contracts w/certain parties & 
fee payments. Prepare financials and summary of payments. Prepare Board packet. 
Routinely picked up mail from PO Box; reconciled accounts to the City of Seaside 
Watermaster accounts; prepared financial reports; processed invoices; reviewed and 
posted items to web site.

June 2019 RFS 2019-01 General Consulting & TAC
Prepare presentations on the BMAP amd sustainable yield for 6/5 Board meeting. 
Travel Cambria/Monterey/Cambria to attend Board meeting; emails and call to A. 
Imamura regarding presentation to WM. Respond to Bob Jaques regarding providing 
model to EKI; and respond to Bob Jaques regarding Cal-Am questions on injection in 
the Laguna Seca Subarea.

7



Sumary of Payments Made September 2019
Paxton Associates (Administrative Officer (AO))
July 26, 2019 through August 25, 2019 55 5,500.00$      

32 4,800.00        

Montgomery & Associates (Technical Consultant)
1.5 305.00          

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District
206.0 23,770.00      

January through June 2019 RFS 2019-02: Water level collection 18 1,116.00$      
Total for September 2019 35,491.00$    

Grand Total August - September 2019 45,821.36$    

Database entry/maint; water level collection; WQ 
sample/datalogger collection; CASGEM data reporting; direct costs

January through June 2019 RFS 2019-01

Responded to emails, telephone inquiries, and other correspondence on a variety of 
Watermaster issues; TAC agenda packet prep/attend meeting. Prep for/attend August 
board meeting. 2020 M&MP & RFSs. Review/approve invoice from Montgomery & 
Associates. Begin Review of SVGSA Advisory Committee agenda packet. Deliver 
updated BMAP reports to Paxton, Miller, & Gomez. 2020 M&MP budgets & final 
revisions. Meeting at M1W re: availability of water for groundwater storage in SGWB. 
Review documents from 9/3 meeting.

July 2019 RFS 2019-01 General Consulting & TAC

Respond to B. Jaques emails questioning if the Watermaster should run additional 
simulations for coastal injection; and prepare 2020 budget for Board packet.

Responded to telephone inquiries, e-mail, and other correspondence as needed regarding 
the Seaside Basin. Revise agenda; update distribution list and distribute agenda. 
Appointment of new Laguna Seca Landowner rep and prrepare New Board member 
orientation binder. Prepare board Packet. Draft letter to Court re: In-lieu storage. Prepare 
and distribute Board packet. Prep for/Attend 8/7 Board meeting. Review CAW LSSA 
moratorium app to PUC and respond to Mr. Lucido. Finalize letter re: In-lieu storage for 
Bruno signature. Mission Memorial data collection fee follow up. Joe Lucido PRA 
request/other docs. Routinely picked up mail from PO Box; reconciled accounts to the 
City of Seaside Watermaster accounts; prepared financial reports; processed invoices; 
reviewed and posted items to web site.

Robert Jaques (Technical Program Manager)
July 31, 2019 through Septemember 4, 2019     

8



VI.B
10/2/19

2019 Adopted 
Revised Budget 

Contract 
Amount

Year to Date 
Revenue / 
Expenses

Available Balances & Assessments
Dedicated Reserve - - 
FY (Rollover) 23,000.00         12,825.52     
Admin Assessments 77,000.00         77,000.00     

Available 100,000.00 89,825.52     

Expenses
Contract Staff 50,000.00         50,000.00 30,725.00     
Legal Advisor 25,000.00         5,002.20       
Filing fees and postage - 

Total Expenses 75,000.00         50,000.00 35,727.20     

Total Available 25,000.00         

Dedicated Reserve 25,000.00         25,000.00     

Net Available - 29,098.32     

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster

 Budget vs. Actual Administrative Fund
 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2019)

Balance through August 31, 2019

9



VI.B.
10/2/19

2019 Adopted 
Budget

Contract 
Encumbrance

Year to Date 
Revenue/Expenses

Available Balances & Assessments
Operations Fund Assessment 106,921.00$            -$ 106,921.00$  
Pass Through - 3,915.00 2,049.00 
Cost Share Reimbursement - - - 
FY 2018 Rollover 100,000.00 - 222,193.80 

Total Available 206,921.00$            3,915.00$  331,163.80$  

Appropriations & Expenses
GENERAL

Technical Project Manager 50,000.00$              50,000.00$  39,937.50$  
Contingency @ 10% (not including TPM ) 14,266.00 - - 

Total General 64,266.00$              50,000.00$  39,937.50$  

CONSULTANTS (Montgomery; Todd Groundwater; Web Site Database)
Program Administration 21,140.00$              
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 2,400.00 
Basin Management 30,000.00 - - 
Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report 21,550.00 21,100.00 - 

Total Consultants 75,090.00$              40,500.00$  10,901.61$  

MPWMD
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 48,832.00$              48,832.00 20,950.00 
Pass Through 2018 - 3,915.00 1,116.00 
Basin Management - - 
Seawater Intrusion 1,192.00 1,192.00 - 
Direct Costs - - 2,820.00 

Total MPWMD 50,024.00$              53,939.00$  24,886.00$  

CONTRACTOR (Martin Feeney)
Production/Lvl/Qlty Monitoring 17,541.00$              17,540.56$  7,175.29$  

Total Appropriations & Expenses 206,921.00$            161,979.56$  82,900.40$  

Total Available - 248,263.40 

 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2019)
Balance through August 31, 2019

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Budget vs. Actual Monitoring & Management - Operations Fund

19,400.00$  10,901.61$  

10



 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster ITEM VI.B.
Replenishment Fund 10/2/19

Water Year 2019 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2019) Page 1
Balance through August 31, 2019

Replenishment Fund 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Assessments: WY 05/06 WY 06/07 WY 07/08 WY 08/09 WY 09/10 WY 10/11 WY 11/12 WY 12/13
Unit Cost: $1,132 / $283 $1,132 / $283 $2,485 / 621.25 $3,040 / $760 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695

-$               1,641,004$    4,226,710$    (2,871,690)$   (2,839,939)$   (3,822,219)$   (6,060,164)$  (8,735,671)$  

Cal-Am Water Production 3710.0 AF 4059.9 AF 3862.9 AF 2966.0 AF 3713.5 AF 3416.0 AF 3070.9 AF 3076.6 AF

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers       2,106,652       2,565,471       5,199,014       3,773,464       4,112,933       3,187,854      2,280,943      2,380,842 
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment -          20,235            8,511 -                  - -        154,963        181,057 

 $   2,106,652  $   2,585,706  $   5,207,525  $   3,773,464  $   4,112,933  $   3,187,854  $   2,435,907  $   2,561,899 

CAW Credit Against Assessment (465,648)       (12,305,924)   (3,741,714)$   (5,095,213)    (5,425,799)    (5,111,413)    - 

CAW Unpaid Balance 1,641,004$    4,226,710$    (2,871,690)    (2,839,939)$   (3,822,219)$   (6,060,164)$   (8,735,671)$  (6,173,771)$  

City of Seaside Balance Forward -$               243,294$      426,165$      1,024,272$    1,619,973$    891,509$      (110,014)$     (773,813)$     

City of Seaside Municipal Production 332.0 AF 387.7 AF 294.3 AF 293.4 AF 282.9 AF 240.7 AF 233.7 AF 257.7 AF
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers         219,689         174,082         402,540         465,300         314,721         141,335        163,509        236,782 

Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment          12,622 85            4,225          16,522          20,690 -           1,689          27,007 

Total Municipal         232,310         174,167         406,764         481,823         335,412         141,335        165,198        263,788 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - 
Alternative Producer -                  -         131,705          69,701 -                  - -                 - 
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment -                  -          32,926          17,427 -                  - -                 - 

Total Golf Courses -                  -         164,631          87,128 -                  - -                 - 

Total City of Seaside*  $     232,310  $     174,167  $     571,395  $     568,951  $     335,412  $     141,335  $     165,198  $     263,788 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5%          10,984            8,704          26,712          26,750          15,737 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment - - -$  (1,079,613)    (1,142,858)    (828,996)      (1,065,852)    
City of Seaside Unpaid Balance 243,294$      426,165$      1,024,272$    1,619,973$    891,509$      (110,014)$     (773,813)$     (1,575,876)$  

Total Replenishment Fund Balance 1,884,298$    4,652,874$    (1,847,417)$   (1,219,966)$   (2,930,710)$   (6,170,178)$   (9,509,483)$  (7,749,648)$  

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward - 1,884,298$    4,652,874$    (1,847,417)$   (1,219,966)$   (2,930,710)$   (6,170,178)$  (9,509,483)$  
Total Replenishment Assessments       2,349,946       2,768,576       5,805,632       4,369,165       4,464,082       3,329,189      2,601,104      2,825,688 
Total Paid and/or Credited        (465,648) -    (12,305,924)     (3,741,714)     (6,174,826)     (6,568,657)     (5,940,409)     (1,065,852)
Grand Total Fund Balance 1,884,298$    4,652,874$    (1,847,417)$   (1,219,966)$   (2,930,710)$   (6,170,178)$   (9,509,483)$  (7,749,648)$  

Total California American 

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

11



 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster ITEM VI.B.
Replenishment Fund 10/2/19

Water Year 2019 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2019) Page 2
Balance through August 31, 2019

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Totals WY 
2006 Through 

2018
 Budget            
WY 2019 

Projected Totals 
Through WY 

2019
WY 13/14 WY 14/15 WY 15/16 WY 16/17 WY 17/18 WY 18/19$2,702 / 
$675.50

$2,702 / 
$675.50

$2,702 / 
$675.50 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718

(6,173,771)$   (3,102,221)$   (676,704)$     (676,704)$     (491,747)$     (48,797,949)$ 

3232.1 AF

      2,790,539       2,113,414 -         184,957      1,075,995  $ 31,772,078         100,000 31,872,078$     

        281,012         312,103 -                  - -         957,881          20,000 977,881 
 $   3,071,550  $   2,425,516  $     184,957  $   1,075,995  $ 32,729,958  $     120,000  $    32,849,958 

- - - (49,382,196)  (81,527,907)   - (81,527,907) 

(3,102,221)$   (676,704)$     (676,704)$     (491,747)$     (48,797,949)$ (48,797,949)$ (48,677,949)$ (48,677,949)$    

(1,575,876)$   (2,889,325)$   (3,346,548)$   (3,232,420)$   (3,142,500)$  (3,022,249)$   

223.6 AF 223.6 AF 185.01 AF

        142,410          69,630         102,330          87,512          93,225  $   2,613,063         100,000 2,713,063$      

           3,222 38           11,959            2,409          27,026         127,492          10,000 137,492          

        145,631          69,667         114,290          89,920        120,251       2,740,556         110,000         2,850,556 

-                  - -                  - -         201,406 - 201,406          

-                  - -                  - -          50,353 - 50,353           

-                  - -                  - -         251,759 -           251,759 

 $     145,631  $       69,667  $     114,290  $       89,920  $     120,251  $   2,992,315  $     110,000  $     3,102,315 
         88,887             88,887 

(1,459,080)    (526,890)       (162)            - -     (6,103,451) - (6,103,451)       
(2,889,325)$   (3,346,548)$   (3,232,420)$   (3,142,500)$   (3,022,249)$   $  (3,022,249) (2,912,249)$   (2,912,249)$     
(5,991,546)$   (4,023,252)$   (3,909,125)$   (3,634,247)$   (51,820,198)$ (51,820,198)$ (51,590,198)$ (51,590,198)$    

(7,749,648)$   (5,991,546)$   (4,023,252)$   (3,909,125)$   (3,634,247)$  (51,820,198)$ 
      3,217,182       2,495,183         114,290         274,877      1,196,246     35,811,161         230,000 36,041,161      
    (1,459,080)        (526,890)             (162) -    (49,382,196)    (87,631,358) - (87,631,358)     

(5,991,546)$   (4,023,252)$   (3,909,125)$   (3,634,247)$   (51,820,198)$    (51,820,198) (51,590,198)$ (51,590,198)$    12



ITEM VIII.A.1 
10/2/2019 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 

TO:  Board of Directors  
FROM:  Laura Paxton, Administrative Officer  

DATE:  October 2, 2019  
SUBJECT:  Proposed Fiscal Year (Calendar Year) 2020 Annual Administrative Fund Budget  

PURPOSE:  
To advise the Board of the estimated amount necessary to properly fund the Administrative 
oversight portion of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster for Fiscal Year 2020.  

RECOMMENDATION:  
Recommended Board approval of the attached proposed Administrative Fund Budget for FY 2020.  

DISCUSSION:  
The court decision states that next fiscal year’s budgets must be approved by the Board of Directors no 
later than the end of October each year in order for the tentative budgets to be circulated to each Party 
to the adjudication “no earlier than November 1 and no later than November 15” of each fiscal year.  

Staff fields whatever legal issues it can. Legal counsels to the Watermaster parties are queried for 
issues beyond staff scope, primarily California American Water legal counsel. No significant legal 
issues have arisen in 2019.  

The Watermaster board has directed staff to issue a request for proposals (RFP) for Watermaster 
legal services. Staff is developing a mailing list of proposal candidates and anticipates distribution of 
the RFP in 2020. 

An estimated $37,000 in unspent 2019 funds is the expected carry over to 2020. The estimated legal 
expenditure in 2020 is as follows:  

Annual report review by CAW counsel:      $        0  
No Case Management Conferences requested:   0 
Unanticipated Issues/contingency:      25,000 
Total:        $   25,000 

The Budget and Finance Committee met on September 18, 2019 and recommended the Board 
approve the proposed administrative budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
An Administrative Fund Assessment of $63,000 is proposed:  
$50,000(AO)+$25,000(Legal)+$25,000(Reserve) = $100,000-$37,000(Carryover) = $63,000 

The assessments for the parties required to contribute to the Administrative Fund are:  
California American Water 83.0%   $52,290  
City of Seaside 14.4%    9,072  
City of Sand City 2.6%    1,638  

ATTACHMENTS 
1) Proposed Administrative Fund Budget for FY (Calendar Year) 2020

13



2019 
Adopted  
Budget

2019 
Estimated 

Total 

2020 
Proposed 
Budget

Assessment Income

Reserve/Rollover* 23,000$    13,000$     37,000$     
Administrative Assessment 77,000 77,000 63,000

Totals 100,000 90,000 100,000

Expenditures
Contractual Services - Administrative 50,000 48,000 50,000
Legal Services 25,000 5,000 25,000
Total Expenses 75,000 53,000 75,000
Total Available 25,000 37,000 25,000

Less Reserve 25,000 25,000 25,000

Net Available -$            12,000$ -$             

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Administrative Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Administrative Year 2020

14



ITEM VIII.A.2 
10/2/19 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager 
REVIEWED BY: Laura Dadiw, Administrative Officer 

DATE: October 2, 2019 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Proposed FY (January – December) 2020 Monitoring and 
Management Program (M&MP), and Proposed 2020 M&MP Operations & Capital Fund Budgets 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
RECOMMENDATION:
Approve, or make changes to and then approve, the below:

1. FY 2020 M&MP
2. FY 2020 M&MP Operations Fund Budget
3. FY 2020 M&MP Capital Fund Budget (unfunded)

The projected 2021 Operations and Capital Fund Budgets are informational only, and no action on those 
budgets is required. 

BACKGROUND: 
At its August 14, 2019 meeting the TAC reviewed and discussed the proposed FY 2020 M&MP, and at 
its September 11, 2019 meeting the TAC reviewed and discussed the proposed 2020 M&MP Operations 
Fund and Capital Budgets.  At its September 18, 2019 meeting the Budget and Finance Committee 
reviewed and discussed these same documents.  Both committees recommended that the Board approve 
each of them.  

DISCUSSION: 
2020 M&MP:  The following are the principle differences between the 2019 M&MP and the proposed 
2020 M&MP:   

1. The work to be performed under Task I.2.b.6 has been greatly reduced and the language of
Tasks I.2.a.1 and I.4.c have been revised to reflect the work being transferred to those Tasks as a result 
of reducing the work of Task I.2.b.6. 

2. The language in Task I.3.e is based on the expectation that the re-testing of PWM AWT water
at a lower alkalinity will show that the water is acceptable and will not cause any adverse geochemical 
impacts.  This re-testing has now been completed and the initial indication is that the PWM AWT water 
will not cause any adverse geochemical impacts.  If the formal revised recommendation of MPWMD’s 
geochemical consultant, Pueblo Water Resources, confirms that, then the language in Task I.3.e will be 
satisfactory as presented.  If that proves not to be the case, the language will need to be revised to 
address this. 

It should be noted that none of the Recommendations from the recently updated Basin Management 
Action Plan (BMAP) were included in the 2020 M&MP because at its July 12 meeting the TAC felt that 
only three of those recommendations (water conservation, coordination with the Salinas Valley Basin 
GSA, and Seaside storm water recharge) were feasible for pursuit at this time.  None of these have any 
out-of-pocket cost or work consequence to the Watermaster, so they are not included in the 2020 
M&MP.   The other BMAP recommendations may become feasible or necessary in future years.   

15



2020 M&MP Budgets:     
Tasks M.1.c, M.1.d, and M.1.e (On-call/as-needed Consulting Services):  There have been some 
hourly rate increases for the Montgomery and Associates staff that will likely be the ones to provide on-
call/as-needed hydrogeological consulting services under Tasks M.1.c, M.1.d, and M.1.e (Derrik 
Williams and Georgina King).  However, I have left the budget amounts for those tasks unchanged from 
2019.  This is because there is often some money left over in those budget line-items at the end of the 
year, and because the dollar amounts provided for those Tasks are only guesstimates. 
Task M.1.g (SGMA Documentation Preparation): In 2019 the amount budgeted for this Task was 
$2,140.  The proposed scope of work for this task is unchanged from 2019, but there was budget left 
over after the work in 2019 was completed.  Therefore, the amount proposed for 2020 is decreased by 
$140 to $2,000. 

Task I.2.b.3 (Collect Quarterly Water Quality Samples):  In 2019 the total amount budgeted for this 
Task was $42,083, comprised of $24,542 for MPWMD and $17,541for Martin Feeney.  The proposed 
scope of work for this task in 2020 is changed slightly from 2019 due to (1) the need to perform some 
maintenance work on the Sentinel Wells by Mr. Feeney, and (2) by a reduction in the amount of work 
required by MPWMD to compile data.  The cost for the induction logging subcontractor to Mr. Feeney is 
unchanged from 2019, but the amount proposed for Mr. Feeney’s portion of this work in 2020 is 
increased by $1,710 to perform the maintenance work. MPWMD’s costs for 2020 are reduced by $992.  
Therefore, the amount proposed for 2020 is increased by $718 to $42,801. 

Task I.2.b.6 (Prepare Data Appendix for SWI Report):  MPWMD’s scope of work for this Task in 
2020 has been reduced by having them only compile the data in MS Access format and provide that to 
Montgomery & Associates, rather than preparing a water quality and water level report.  Therefore, the 
amount proposed for 2020 is reduced by $1,490 to $2,086. 

Task I.2.b.7 (CASGEM Data Submittal for Watermaster's Voluntary Wells):  Because of the 
increased time MPWMD encountered in 2019 to format and submit this data to the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) to comply with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requirements 
for adjudicated basins, the number of hours provided for this Task in 2020 has been significantly 
increased from 16 hours in 2019 to 60 hours in 2020.  The hourly rate for this work is unchanged from 
2019, but the additional hours resulted in an increase in cost.  Therefore, the amount proposed for 2020 
is increased by $6,556 to $8,940. 

Task I.4.c (Annual Report- Seawater Intrusion Analysis):  In 2019 the total amount budgeted for this 
Task was $22,742, comprised of $1,192 for MPWMD and $21,550 for Montgomery & Associates.  The 
proposed scope of work for this task is changed from 2019 by having Montgomery & Associates prepare 
the water quality and water level report that was formerly prepared by MPWMD under Task I.2.a.1.  The 
hourly rate for the MPWMD staff involved in performing their portion of this task is unchanged, so the 
amount proposed for 2020 for their portion of this work is unchanged from the amount in 2019.  The 
hourly rates for some of the personnel working on this at Montgomery and Associates have increased 
slightly, and additional hours have been added for Montgomery & Associates to take the raw data 
provided to them by MPWMD and use it to prepare the water level and water quality report, so it can be 
included in the SIAR.  Therefore, the amount proposed for 2020 is increased by $2,580 to $25,322. 

Task I.3.e (Seaside Basin Geochemical Model):  The full cost of the geochemical modeling that was 
performed in 2019 is being borne by the three proponents of the projects that intend to inject new sources 
of water into the Basin.  These are California American Water, MPWMD, and Monterey One Water 
(formerly MRWPCA).  It is anticipated that, if Montgomery & Associates needs to perform work on this 
Task in 2020, these same parties will reimburse the Watermaster for all of the costs to perform this work.  
Therefore, there should be no net cost to the Watermaster for the work of this Task. 

16



SUMMARY: 
As indicated by the right-hand column titled “Comparative Costs from 2019 Budget” in the proposed 
2020 M&MP Operations Budget in Attachment 2, the proposed 2020 Budget, including the associated 
$822 increase in the 10% Contingency line item, is $9,046 higher ($215,967-$206,921) than the 2019 
Budget.   
 
Since no Capital Projects are anticipated in 2020, there is no change in the M&MP Capital Budget from 
2019 to 2020, and that budget remains at zero dollars. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1.  Proposed 2020 M&MP 
2.  M&MP: Operations Fund Budgets Proposed for 2020 
3. M&MP: Operations Fund Budgets Projected for 2021  
4.  M&MP: Capital Fund Budgets Proposed for 2020 and Projected for 2021 (both unfunded) 

17



ATTACHMENT 1 

18



19



 

20



 

21



 

22



23



 

24



ATTACHMENT 2 

25



 

26



 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 
 
 
 
 

27



28



ATTACHMENT 4 

29



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

30



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster ITEM ViII.A.3
Replenishment Fund 10/2/19

Water Year 2020 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2020) PAGE ONE
Proposed 2020 Budget

Replenishment Fund 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Assessments: WY 05/06 WY 06/07 WY 07/08 WY 08/09 WY 09/10 WY 10/11 WY 11/12 WY 12/13 WY 13/14
Unit Cost: $1,132 / $283 $1,132 / $283 $2,485 / 621.25 $3,040 / $760 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,780 / $695 $2,702 / $675.50

-$  1,641,004$               4,226,710$               (2,871,690)$              (2,839,939)$              (3,822,219)$              (6,060,164)$              (8,735,671)$              (6,173,771)$              

Cal-Am Water Production 3710.0 AF 4059.9 AF 3862.9 AF 2966.0 AF 3713.5 AF 3416.0 AF 3070.9 AF 3076.6 AF 3232.1 AF

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers 2,106,652 2,565,471 5,199,014 3,773,464 4,112,933 3,187,854 2,280,943 2,380,842 2,790,539 
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment - 20,235 8,511 -                             - - 154,963 181,057 281,012 

 $ 2,106,652  $ 2,585,706  $ 5,207,525  $ 3,773,464  $ 4,112,933  $ 3,187,854  $ 2,435,907  $ 2,561,899  $ 3,071,550 

CAW Credit Against Assessment (465,648) (12,305,924)              (3,741,714)$              (5,095,213) (5,425,799) (5,111,413) - - 

CAW Unpaid Balance 1,641,004$               4,226,710$               (2,871,690)               (2,839,939)$              (3,822,219)$              (6,060,164)$              (8,735,671)$              (6,173,771)$              (3,102,221)$              

City of Seaside Balance Forward -$  243,294$  426,165$  1,024,272$               1,619,973$               891,509$  (110,014)$  (773,813)$  (1,575,876)$              

City of Seaside Municipal Production 332.0 AF 387.7 AF 294.3 AF 293.4 AF 282.9 AF 240.7 AF 233.7 AF 257.7 AF 223.6 AF
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers 219,689 174,082 402,540 465,300 314,721 141,335 163,509 236,782 142,410 
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment 12,622 85 4,225 16,522 20,690 - 1,689 27,007 3,222 

Total Municipal 232,310 174,167 406,764 481,823 335,412 141,335 165,198 263,788 145,631 

City of Seaside - Golf Courses
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - 
Alternative Producer -                             - 131,705 69,701 -                             - -                             - - 
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment -                             - 32,926 17,427 -                             - -                             - - 

Total Golf Courses -                             - 164,631 87,128 -                             - -                             - - 

Total City of Seaside*  $ 232,310  $ 174,167  $ 571,395  $ 568,951  $ 335,412  $ 141,335  $ 165,198  $ 263,788  $ 145,631 
City of Seaside Late Payment 5% 10,984 8,704 26,712 26,750 15,737 

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment - - -$  (1,079,613) (1,142,858) (828,996) (1,065,852) (1,459,080) 
City of Seaside Unpaid Balance 243,294$  426,165$  1,024,272$               1,619,973$               891,509$  (110,014)$  (773,813)$  (1,575,876)$              (2,889,325)$              

Total Replenishment Fund Balance 1,884,298$               4,652,874$               (1,847,417)$              (1,219,966)$              (2,930,710)$              (6,170,178)$              (9,509,483)$              (7,749,648)$              (5,991,546)$              

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward - 1,884,298$               4,652,874$               (1,847,417)$              (1,219,966)$              (2,930,710)$              (6,170,178)$              (9,509,483)$              (7,749,648)$              
Total Replenishment Assessments 2,349,946 2,768,576 5,805,632 4,369,165 4,464,082 3,329,189 2,601,104 2,825,688 3,217,182 
Total Paid and/or Credited (465,648) - (12,305,924) (3,741,714) (6,174,826) (6,568,657) (5,940,409) (1,065,852) (1,459,080)
Grand Total Fund Balance 1,884,298$               4,652,874$               (1,847,417)$              (1,219,966)$              (2,930,710)$              (6,170,178)$              (9,509,483)$              (7,749,648)$              (5,991,546)$              

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

Total California American 

31



Replenishment Fund 
Assessments:
Unit Cost:

Cal-Am Water Production

Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment

CAW Credit Against Assessment

CAW Unpaid Balance

City of Seaside Balance Forward

City of Seaside Municipal Production
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield 
Considering Alternative Producers
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment

Total Municipal

City of Seaside - Golf Courses
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield - 
Alternative Producer
Operating Yield Overproduction 
Replenishment

Total Golf Courses

Total City of Seaside*
City of Seaside Late Payment 5%

In-lieu Credit Against Assessment
City of Seaside Unpaid Balance

Total Replenishment Fund Balance

Replenishment Fund Balance Forward
Total Replenishment Assessments 
Total Paid and/or Credited
Grand Total Fund Balance

Cal-Am Water Balance Forward

Total California American 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster ITEM ViII.A.3
Replenishment Fund 10/2/19

Water Year 2020 (October 1 - September 30) / Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2020) PAGE TWO
Proposed 2020 Budget

2015 2016 2017 2018 Estimated 2019
Totals WY 2006 
Through 2019

 Budget
WY 2020 

Projected Totals 
Through WY 2020

WY 14/15 WY 15/16 WY 16/17 WY 17/18 WY 18/19 WY 19/20
$2,702 / $675.50 $2,702 / $675.50 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718 $2,872 / $718

(3,102,221)$              (676,704)$  (676,704)$  (491,747)$  (48,797,949)$            (48,677,949)$            

2,113,414 - 184,957 1,075,995 100,000  $             31,872,078 100,000 31,972,078$             

312,103 -                             - - 20,000 977,881 20,000 997,881
 $ 2,425,516  $ 184,957  $ 1,075,995  $ 120,000  $             32,849,958  $ 120,000  $             32,969,958 

- - (49,382,196)              (81,527,907)              (81,527,907)

(676,704)$  (676,704)$  (491,747)$  (48,797,949)$            (48,677,949)$            (48,677,949)$            (48,557,949)$            (48,557,949)$           

(2,889,325)$              (3,346,548)$              (3,232,420)$              (3,142,500)$              (3,022,249)$              (2,912,249)$              

223.6 AF 185.01 AF

69,630 102,330 87,512 93,225 100,000  $ 2,713,063 100,000 2,813,063$               

38 11,959 2,409 27,026 10,000 137,492 10,000 147,492 

69,667 114,290 89,920 120,251 110,000 2,850,556 110,000 2,960,556 

-                             - -                             - - 201,406 - 201,406 

-                             - -                             - - 50,353 - 50,353 

-                             - -                             - - 251,759 - 251,759 

 $ 69,667  $ 114,290  $ 89,920  $ 120,251  $ 110,000  $ 3,102,315  $ 110,000  $ 3,212,315 
88,887 88,887 

(526,890) (162) - - - (6,103,451) - (6,103,451) 
(3,346,548)$              (3,232,420)$              (3,142,500)$              (3,022,249)$              (2,912,249)$               $             (2,912,249) (2,802,249)$              (2,802,249)$              
(4,023,252)$              (3,909,125)$              (3,634,247)$              (51,820,198)$            (51,590,198)$            (51,590,198)$            (51,360,198)$            (51,360,198)$            

(5,991,546)$              (4,023,252)$              (3,909,125)$              (3,634,247)$              (51,820,198)$            (51,590,198)$            
2,495,183 114,290 274,877 1,196,246 230,000 36,041,161 230,000 36,271,161               
(526,890) (162) - (49,382,196) - (87,631,358) - (87,631,358)              

(4,023,252)$              (3,909,125)$              (3,634,247)$              (51,820,198)$            (51,590,198)$            (51,590,198) (51,360,198)$            (51,360,198)$            

32



1 

ITEM VIII.B. 1-4 
10/2/19 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Robert S. Jaques, Technical Program Manager 

DATE:  October 2, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Approving the Following Professional Services Contracts for Fiscal Year 2020: 
1) Two Contracts with Montgomery & Associates (formerly HydroMetrics) — one for $13,000 for
providing on-call/as-requested hydrogeologic consulting services and for providing assistance in
preparing documents that the Watermaster will need to submit to fulfill its reporting requirements under
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, and the second for $24,130.00 to prepare the Seawater
Intrusion Analysis Report (SIAR) for 2020.
2) Two Contracts with MPWMD—one for $54,098.00 and the second one for $3,915, both pertaining to
monitoring and other work on the Seaside Groundwater Basin Management and Monitoring Program
(M&MP).
3) Two Contracts with Martin Feeney - one for $4,000 to provide on-call/as-requested hydrogeologic
consulting services and one for $19,250.56 to perform induction logging of the Sentinel Wells.
4) One Contract with Todd Groundwater – for $4,000 to provide on-call/as-requested hydrogeologic
consulting services.

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the Board approve the attached RFSs No. 2020-01 and 2020-02 with
Montgomery & Associates, RFSs No. 2020-01 and 2020-02 with MPWMD, RFSs No. 2020-01 and
2020-02 with Martin Feeney, and RFS No. 2020-01 with Todd Groundwater.

BACKGROUND: 
Attached are the proposed initial contracts for each of the Watermaster’s consultants that are expected to 
work on M&MP activities during 2020. Each of these firms is currently working under a master form of 
agreement with the Watermaster called a “Professional Services Agreement” (PSA).  Actual work 
assignments are made through the issuance of Requests for Service (RFS) under the umbrella language 
of the PSA.  The TAC reviewed and discussed the Montgomery & Associates, MPWMD, Martin 
Feeney, and Todd Groundwater items at its September 11, 2019 and the Budget and Finance Committee 
reviewed and discussed these contracts at its September 18, 2019 meeting and both committees 
recommended that the Board approve each of them.  

DISCUSSION 
The attached RFSs constitute the proposed initial 2019 work assignments for each of these consultants as 
follows: 

• Montgomery & Associates RFS No. 2020-01 covering their providing general hydrogeologic
consulting services and for providing assistance in preparing documents that the Watermaster
will need to submit to fulfill its reporting requirements under the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act.  These tasks are similar to those in preceding years.

33



2 

• Montgomery & Associates RFS No. 2020-02 covering their preparing the 2020 SIAR.
• MPWMD RFS No. 2020-01 covering their anticipated 2020 M&MP tasks.    These tasks are

similar to those in preceding years.
• MPWMD RFS No. 2020-02 covering their obtaining water quality and water level data from

private producers who ask the Watermaster collect this data for them.  The costs for this work are
reimbursed by the private producers, and there is no net cost to the Watermaster for work
performed under this RFS.

• Martin Feeney RFS No. 2020-01 covering his performing induction logging of certain of the
Watermaster’s monitoring wells and providing that data to MPWMD and Montgomery &
Associates.  This year’s work also includes performing some maintenance on the Sentinel Wells.

• Martin Feeney RFS No. 2020-02 covering his providing general hydrogeologic consulting
services.

• Todd Groundwater RFS No. 2020-01 covering their providing general hydrogeologic consulting
services.

These contracts are being presented to the Board for approval at today’s meeting to ensure the contacts 
will be in effect by the start of 2020. All of these costs are included in the Budgets that the Board is 
asked to approve at today’s meeting under a preceding agenda item. 

If geochemical modeling needs to be performed on Cal Am’s desalination plant water in 2020, and if that 
indicates the need to develop mitigation measures for possible adverse impacts from introducing non-
native water into the Basin, I will develop an additional RFS for Montgomery & Associates during 2020 
to use the Seaside Basin Groundwater Model to provide information to MPWMD’s consultant (Pueblo 
Water Resources) to use in performing that geochemical modeling to develop such mitigation measures.  
Funds for this additional RFS have been included in the proposed M&MP Operations Budget for 2020.  
When and if drafted, the RFS would come to the TAC for approval before going to the Board. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Montgomery & Associates RFS No. 2020-01
2. Montgomery & Associates RFS No. 2020-02
3. MPWMD RFS No. 2020-01
4. MPWMD RFS No. 2020-02
5. Martin Feeney RFS No. 2020-01
6. Martin Feeney RFS No. 2020-02
7. Todd Groundwater RFS No. 2020-01.

34



3 35



4 36



5 37



6 38



7 39



8 40



9 41



10 42



11 43



12 44



13 45



14 46



15 47



16 48



17 49



18 50



19 51



20 52



53



54



55



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



ITEM VIII.C  
10/2/2019 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 

TO: Budget/Finance Committee  

FROM: Laura Paxton, Administrative Officer 

DATE: October 2, 2019 

SUBJECT: Unit Cost for Water Year 2019/20 Over Production Replenishment Assessment Amounts 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommended at its September 18 meeting that the Board approve a 
Proposed Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost of $2,872 for Natural Safe Yield Overproduction and $718 
(25% of $2,872) for Operating Yield Over Production for Water Year 2019 (October 1, 2019 - September 30, 
2020). 

SUMMARY: 
The Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost is used to calculate the Replenishment Assessments that are charged 
to any Standard Producer that exceeds its allocations (both Natural Safe Yield and Operating Yield allocations) 
during the Water Year. 

Per page 33 of the Decision, “The per acre-foot amount of the Replenishment Assessments shall be 
determined and declared by Watermaster in October of each Water Year in order to provide Parties with 
advance knowledge of the cost of Over-Production in that Water Year.”  Thus, the per acre-foot amount 
determined by the Board on or before October of 2019 will be used to calculate Replenishment Assessments 
for pumping that occurs during the Water Year beginning October 1, 2019 and ending September 30, 2020. 

BACKGROUND: 
For each of the three Water Years 2014, 2015, and 2016, the Board adopted a unit cost of $2,702/AF.  This unit 
cost was developed starting with Water Year 2014 by taking the average of the Base Unit Cost ($/AF) listed in 
Table 1 for each project [$3,507+$1,800+$2,000+$3,500)/4], as the Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost.  The 
Water Year 2014 unit cost was carried over to the two subsequent Water Years because no updated cost data 
was available for the projects listed in Table 1, and no other viable projects could be identified. For Water Year 
2016/17 the Budget and Finance Committee updated the basis from which the annual calculation of the Unit 
Cost of replenishment water is established, a blended cost of a reduced size desalination plant for the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Supply Project and groundwater replenishment provided by the Pure Water Monterey Project 
[($4,591+$2,025+$2,000)/3] = $2,872 (see Table 2).   

DISCUSSION: 
Due to the lack of more supportable data the recommendation is to continue using $2,872, the average of the 
Base Unit Cost ($/AF) listed in Table 2 for each project [($4,591+$2,025+$2,000)/3] as the Natural Safe Yield 
Over Production Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost for the Water Year 2019/2020. The Operating Yield 
Over Production Replenishment Assessment Unit Cost is 25% of that amount, or $718. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Table 1:  Water Year 2014 Unit Cost Calculation Data 
Table 2:  Current Unit Cost Data 

65



66



!

TABLE 2 

67



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

68



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 

Expressing Support of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project Desalination 
Plant and Related Facilities 

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (Project) has been 
identified by the California Public Utilities Commission as a benefit to water users on the 
Monterey Peninsula and in Monterey County; and 

WHEREAS, the Project includes sub-surface slant intake wells, a desalination 
plant, and related facilities including source water pipelines, product water pipelines and 
brine disposal facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Project is to enable California American Water to 
fully comply with the requirements of State Water Resources Control Board Order Nos. 
WR 95-10 and 2009-0060 and the Seaside Basin Adjudication Decision (California 
American Water v. City of Seaside, et al. Monterey County Superior Court Case No. 
M66343); and 

WHEREAS, the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster administers and 
enforces the provisions of the Seaside Basin Adjudication Decision. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster that the Board supports the proposed sub-
surface slant intake wells, desalination plant, and related facilities including source water 
pipelines, product water pipelines and brine disposal facilities as important in solving the 
long standing water supply problems of the Monterey Peninsula. 

On a motion by ______________ and seconded by _______________ the 
foregoing resolution is duly adopted this 2nd day of October, 2019 by the following votes: 

Ayes: 

Nays 

Absent 

I, Laura Paxton, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Watermaster, hereby certify that the forgoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 2nd day 
of October, 2019. 

______________________________ 
Laura Paxton, Secretary of the Board 

69



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

70



D-R-A-F-T
MINUTES 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Technical Advisory Committee Meeting 

August 14, 2019 

Attendees: TAC Members 
City of Seaside – Rick Riedl (via telephone) 
California American Water – Nina Miller (via telephone) 
City of Monterey – Max Rieser  
Laguna Seca Property Owners – Wes Leith 
MPWMD – Jon Lear 
MCWRA – Tamara Voss 
City of Del Rey Oaks – No Representative 
City of Sand City – No Representative 
Coastal Subarea Landowners – No Representative 

Watermaster 
Technical Program Manager - Robert Jaques 

Consultants 
None 

Others 
Tom Harty – City of Monterey 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
The meeting was convened at 1:42 p.m. after a quorum was established.   

1. Public Comments
There were no public comments.

2. Administrative Matters:
A. Approve Minutes from the July 10, 2019 Meeting
On a motion by Mr. Riedl, seconded by Ms. Miller, the minutes were unanimously approved
as presented.
B. March 2019 Sentinel Well Induction Logging
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  There were no questions or
other discussion.

3. Update on Geochemical Modeling for the Pure Water Monterey Project AWT Water
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  Mr. Lear reported that the bench
testing was now complete and the data was in the hands of Pueblo Water Resources for evaluation.  He
said the data did not appear to raise any issues of concern.

4. Approve Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) for FY 2020

71



Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  Following a brief discussion a motion 
was made by Ms. Voss, seconded by Mr. Riedl, to approve the M&MP for FY 2020 as presented.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

5. Schedule
Mr. Jaques said there were no significant changes to report.  There was no other discussion.

6. Other Business
Mr. Riedl asked if there would be a TAC meeting in September.  Mr. Jaques responded “yes” and that
the FY 2020 M&MP O&M and Capital Budgets, as well as the 2020 RFSs for the consultants and
contractors, would be on the agenda for approval at that meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 1:52 p.m. 

72



D-R-A-F-T
MINUTES 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Technical Advisory Committee Meeting 

September 11, 2019 

Attendees: TAC Members 
City of Seaside – Rick Riedl 
California American Water – Mike Magretto 
City of Monterey – No Representative  
Laguna Seca Property Owners – Wes Leith 
MPWMD – Jon Lear 
MCWRA – Tamara Voss 
City of Del Rey Oaks – No Representative 
City of Sand City – Leon Gomez (via telephone) 
Coastal Subarea Landowners – No Representative 

Watermaster 
Technical Program Manager - Robert Jaques 

Consultants 
None 

Others 
MCWD – Patrick Breen 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
The meeting was convened at 1:33 p.m.   

1. Public Comments
There were no public comments.

2. Administrative Matters:
A. Approve Minutes from the August 14, 2019 Meeting
On a motion by Mr. Riedl, seconded by Ms. Voss, the minutes were unanimously approved as
presented.

3. Update on Geochemical Modeling for the Pure Water Monterey Project AWT Water
Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  Mr. Lear reported that the
geochemical modeling firm in Australia had evaluated the updated lab data and concluded that
introducing the PWM AWT water into the Basin would not pose any water quality problems.  He went
on to say that Pueblo Water Resource’s report will be revised to reflect this, and the report should be
provided to the Watermaster within one to two weeks.  Mr. Jaques said he would email the updated
report to TAC members.

Assuming that the revised report confirms that there will be no problems resulting from introducing the 
PWM AWT water into the Basin, there was consensus that no further action or discussion of this would 
be needed. 

73



4. Approve the FY 2020 Monitoring and Management Program (M&MP) Operations and
Capital Budgets

Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  

In response to a question from Ms. Voss, Mr. Lear explained that with regard to the CASGEM data 
reporting under Task I .2 b.7, the Department of Water Resources has not yet determined how it will 
handle the processing of this data.  MPWMD was one of the first entities to submit data for an 
adjudicated basin, and it has been more time-consuming than initially expected to have the data 
submitted in a manner that is satisfactory to the Department of Water Resources. Ms. Voss asked if Mr. 
Lear thought the extra time that was needed in 2019 would be required again in 2020. Mr. Lear 
responded that he could not tell, but he budgeted for the additional time on the assumption that the 
Department of Water Resources will still be revising its process in 2020. He went on to note that getting 
simultaneous CASGEM and SGMA compliance has been one of the problems. 

Mr. Riedl asked if Monterey One Water’s newly installed Pure Water Monterey monitoring wells will be 
added to the database for monitoring. Mr. Lear said MPWMD would be collecting data from those wells, 
but they are not required to be reported to CASGEM. He noted that The Monitoring and Management 
Program approved by the Court lists the wells to be monitored, and these new wells were not in that list. 
Mr. Riedl asked if we could discuss whether adding these wells would be beneficial for basin 
management purposes, and if so, whether they could be included in the water level and water quality 
reporting. It was agreed that Mr. Jaques would pose that question to Montgomery and Associates in 
conjunction with their preparation of the Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report, and this matter can be 
further discussed at the TAC’s November meeting. 

On a motion by Mr. Gomez, seconded by Mr. Riedl, the budgets were unanimously approved as 
presented. 

5. Approve Initial RFSs for Montgomery & Associates, MPWMD, Martin Feeney, and Todd
Groundwater for 2020

Mr. Jaques summarized the agenda packet materials for this item.  

Mr. Riedl asked whether under the Montgomery and Associates RFS to prepare the Seawater Intrusion 
Analysis Report, if having only one presentation to the TAC, and not a presentation to the Board, was 
sufficient. Mr. Jaques responded that historically the TAC has reviewed the document in detail, and 
made its recommendation to the Board. The Board had not had a presentation made to it since the TAC 
had already given this recommendation for approval. 

On a motion by Ms. Voss, seconded by Mr. Leith, the RFS’s were unanimously approved as presented. 

6. Schedule
Mr. Jaques commented that there would be no need for an October TAC meeting, and that the TAC’s
next meeting would be on the third Wednesday, not the second Wednesday, of November. This is to
allow time for the Seawater Intrusion Analysis Report to be completed so it can be presented to the TAC
at that meeting. There was no other discussion.

7. Other Business
There was no other business.

The meeting adjourned at 2:02 p.m. 

74



Type Oct Nov Dec Oct-Dec 18 Jan Feb Mar Jan-Mar 19 Apr May Jun Apr-Jun 19 Jul Aug Sep Jul-Sep 19 Reported Total Yield Allocation from WY 2018 for WY 2019

Coastal Subareas
CAW - Coastal Subareas SPA 340.23 291.75 161.71 793.69 145.42 133.68 144.34 423.43 0.00 0.00 1,217.12 1,791.62 453.87 2,245.49

Luzern 1.25 4.51 0.00 5.76 0.00 4.57 0.00 4.57 0.00 0.00 8.96 8.96 19.29 0.00
Ord Grove 123.91 118.28 118.81 361.00 116.84 103.82 113.35 334.01 105.62 105.95 98.48 310.05 1,005.06

Paralta 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Playa 0.00 1.97 32.07 34.04 8.91 0.00 13.80 22.71 31.99 7.85 7.82 47.65 104.40

Plumas 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.05 19.67 25.28 17.19 62.14 0.00 0.00 7.77 7.77 69.96
Santa Margarita 215.02 166.99 10.83 392.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 392.85

City of Seaside (Municipal) SPA 15.74 14.59 11.76 42.09 6.74 17.24 14.15 38.13 13.97 15.68 15.59 45.24 0.00 125.46 146.99 0.00 146.99
Granite Rock Company SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.87 221.99 235.86
DBO Development No. 30 SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.16 403.96 429.12
Calabrese (Cypress Pacific Inv.) SPA  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.37 16.09 19.46
City of Seaside (Golf Courses) APA 51.64 26.75 0.00 78.38 0.51 2.61 6.22 9.34 55.10 48.14 76.91 180.15 0.00 267.87 540.00 540.00
Sand City APA 0.20 0.21 0.04 0.46 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.12 0.08 0.14 0.11 0.34 0.00 0.91 9.00 9.00
SNG (Security National Guaranty) APA  - -  - -  - - 0.00 0.00 149.00 149.00
Calabrese (Cypress Pacific Inv.) APA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 6.00 6.00
Mission Memorial (Alderwoods) APA 2.51 1.49 0.00 4.00 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.32 1.51 2.11 3.93 0.00 7.95 31.00 31.00

Coastal Subareas Totals 1,712.32 894.49 604.10 0.00 3,210.91 2,716.00 1,095.91 3,811.91

Laguna Seca Subarea
CAW - Laguna Seca Subarea SPA 28.44 24.66 17.80 70.90 14.84 14.10 16.81 45.76 0.00 0.00 116.66 0.00 0.00

Ryan Ranch Unit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 3.01 0.00 3.01
Hidden Hills Unit 11.24 9.73 7.31 28.29 7.11 5.93 6.97 20.01 8.31 11.90 11.67 31.88 0.00 80.17

Bishop Unit 3 17.20 14.93 10.48 42.62 7.74 8.17 9.84 25.75 11.68 15.10 11.09 37.86 0.00 106.23
Bishop Unit 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.99 5.99 0.00 5.99

The Club at Pasadera APA 16.00 24.00 7.00 47.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 9.00 10.00 35.00 54.00 0.00 103.00 251.00 251.00
Laguna Seca Golf Resort (Bishop) APA 16.55 12.42 0.22 29.19 0.00 0.30 0.00 0.31 0.19 16.49 16.71 33.38 0.00 62.88 320.00 320.00
York School APA 1.33 0.49 0.00 1.81 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.03 1.69 1.47 1.78 4.94 0.00 6.78 32.00 32.00
Laguna Seca County Park APA 3.01 1.47 0.76 5.23 1.70 0.41 1.16 3.28 1.84 2.55 2.62 7.00 0.00 15.52 41.00 41.00

Laguna Seca Subarea Totals 154.13 51.37 99.33 0.00 304.84 644.00 0.00 644.00

Total Production by WM Producers 1,866.45 945.87 703.43 0.00 3,515.75 3,360.00 1,095.91 4,455.91
Annual Production from APA Producers 464.94 1,379.00
Annual Production from SPA Producers 1,459.24 3,076.91

City of Seaside Golf Courses In-Lieu (MCWD source water)

MCWD delivery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CAW / MPWMD ASR (Carmel River Basin source water)

Injection 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 269.63 306.73 372.93 949.29 282.60 103.18 0.00 385.78 0.00 1335.07
(Recovery) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net ASR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 269.63 306.73 372.93 949.29 282.60 103.18 0.00 385.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1335.07

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER

Reported Quarterly and Annual Water Production From the Seaside Groundwater Basin
For All Producers Included in the Seaside Basin Adjudication -- Water Year 2019

(All Values in Acre-Feet [AF])

Notes: 
1.  The Water Year (WY) begins October 1 and ends September 30 of the following calendar year.  For example, WY 2019 begins on October 1, 2018, and ends on September 30, 2019. 

2.  "Type" refers to water right as described in Seaside Basin Adjudication decision as amended, signed February 9, 2007 (Monterey County Superior Court Case No. M66343). 

3.  Values shown in the table are based on reports to the Watermaster received by July 15, 2019. 

4.  All values are rounded to the nearest hundredth of an acre-foot.  Where required, reported data were converted to acre-feet utilizing the relationships:  325,851 gallons = 43,560 cubic feet = 1 acre-foot. 

5. "Base Operating Yield Allocation" values are based on Seaside Basin Adjudication decision.  These values are consistent with the Watermaster Producer Allocations Water Year 2019 (see  Item IX A. in 1/2/2019 Board packet). 

6.  Any minor discrepancies in totals are attributable to rounding. 

7.  APA = Alternative Producer Allocation; SPA = Standard Producer Allocation; CAW = California American Water. 

8. It should be noted that CAW/MPWMD ASR "Injection" and "Recovery" amounts are not expected to "balance" within each Water Year.  This is due to the injection recovery "rules" that are part of SWRCB water rights permits
and/or separate agreements with state and federal resources agencies that are associated with the water rights permits. 

75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

76



77




